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The First Unitarian Church of Omaha, a 1917 Colonial Revival edifice,l
is located on the northwest corner of Harney Street and Turner Boulevard
in a mixed-use section of Omaha (1970 pop. 354,389). The building contains
one and one-half stories above a raised basement, and the wall construction
is of brick laid in Flemish bond. Centered on the main facade is a double-
door entrance whose semi-circular fanlight has delicate tracery. Round-
arched windows flank the entrance, and over the three first-floor openings
are rectangular windows that illuminate the organ loft. Each side wall
is punctuated by five round-arched windows and two oculi.

The main facade's fenestration is framed by a tetrastyle Roman Ionic
portico whose slender columns and pilasters are united by boxed beams on
the portico ceiling. The portico's frieze and architrave contain simple
moldings, but the cornice, like the continuous cornice atop the walls,
is treated with dentil and modillion moldings.

A three-staged tower centered on the front surmounts the building's
hipped roof. The tower's first section is a rectangular brick box with
quoins and a simple cornice; the second section -- a four-sided belfry —
is wooden and contains round-arched, louvred openings; and the third
section, also of wood, is an octagonal cupola with narrow round-arched
windows, finials, diminutive Ionic pilasters, and an octagonal dome. A
wooden balustrade surmounting the cornice around the walls has been removed.
The church interior contains Colonial Revival fittings of a highly-
finished quality. Past the main entrance is a spacious vestibule. Over
this room is the organ and choir loft, reached by the main stairway at
the west end of the vestibule. In the auditorium, mahogany-topped pews
and their arrangement correctly reproduce the seating type and plan of
a New England Colonial meetinghouse, and framing the round-arched windows
of the side walls are five-bay arcades with pilasters and Ionic columns
on plinths. The ceiling of the auditorium is treated with large coffers
and there is a balustrade separating the raised platform at the front
from the remainder of the church interior. Flanking the platform's
centered recess are a wine-glass pulpit and a lectern.

A one-story addition at the church's northwest corner was constructed
in 1952 to meet expanding educational facility needs. Designed by
architect David Wallace, the addition respects the materials and scale
of the original building, which was designed by architects John and
Alan McDonald.

1. Russell Sturgis's 1902 Dictionary of Architecture and Building defines
Colonial architecture in the following manner: '"In American use, that
which prevailed in the British settlement in America previous to 1776,
and by extention, and because the style cannot be distinctly separated
into chronological periods, as late as the beginnings of the present
century" (Vol. I, column 639ff).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The First Unitarian Church of Omaha is architecturally significant
to Nebraska as an early and fine product of the Colonial Revival. Designed
by John and Alan McDonald, the building is exemplary in illustrating the
heritage of Unitarianism in America by reproducing in the Midwest an 18th-
century house of worship common to the region where the denomination took
root and flourished.

Unitarian services in Omaha were first held in 1866. A congregation
was organized and a minister was secured three years later, and the first
church building was dedicated in 1871 (The Bee, Omaha, Sept. 30, 1918).
Former President William Howard Taft, then serving as president of the
Unitarian Church Conference in the United States and Canada, officiated
at the cornerstone-laying ceremony for the second and present church
(The Bee, Omaha, Oct. 20, 1917). When the Colonial Revival edifice
was dedicated on September 29, 1918, it won quick favor from the local
press, one newspaper reporting the following:

The new building of the First Unitarian church, Omaha, brings
to this city a touch of New England, and it is fitting that
this society . . . should be housed in a building resembling

so closely the old New England meetinghouse. Both exterior

and interior of the new building follow the traditions handed
down by the forefathers . . . The whole is truly a leaf from an
old book (The Bee, Sept. 28, 1918, p. 3).

The Colonial Revival was second only to the Gothic Revival in
American church architecture by the 1920s (Rhoads, The Colonial Revival,
Vol. 1, p. 200). Like Congregationalists, Unitarians have frequently
chosen this style for their church buildings (Ibid., p. 212). 1In 1906,

a Unitarian, Allen French, proclaimed that the Gothic "is opposed to

our ideals; its religion was as gloomy as its great vaults, as idolatrous
as its carved altars, as narrow as its lancet windows.'" On the other
hand, the Georgian of America's Colonial period "came . . ., when the
Gothic was dead . . . It is as perfect and complete an architectural
style as the Gothic itself, It represents the new ideas, it is freer,
brighter, more open . . . It adapted itself to our conditions, and still
expresses them. Let the Episcopalian cling to his Gothic . . ., but

it has nothing to do with us" (French, American Architect, April 7, 1906,
p. 116, quoted in Rhoad's The Colonial Revival, Vol. I, p. 213).
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John McDonald and his son, Alan, architects, were natives of Qmaha.
Alan (1891-1948), who earned an architecture degree from Harvard in 1915,
may have played the major role in designing the building since he was a
member of First Unitarian and had perhaps closely examined Georgian
buildings while in New England.
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